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Maxine Krause

From: Stefan Wolmarans <SWolmarans@waveinternational.com>
Sent: Thursday, 14 January 2021 12:58 PM
To: Stuart Fenech; Chris Padovan; Michael.Mattingley@roads.vic.gov.au
Cc: Loretta Fallaw; Power, Tim; Campbell, Kirsty; Chris Cook; Jozsef Patarica
Subject: Fingerboards Mineral Sands - Proposed road and intersection geometry
Attachments: 2390-001.pdf; 2390-002.pdf; 2390-003.pdf; 2390-004.pdf; 2390-005.pdf; 

2390-006.pdf; 2390-010.pdf; 2390-011.pdf; 2390-012.pdf; 2390-013.pdf

All , 
 
Attached please find concept designs and a summary of current roads designs for discussion at this afternoon’s 
meeting. The attached plans reflect Kalbar’s current thinking about the road layout, and in some respects differ from 
the road layout exhibited in the EES. While Kalbar is not abandoning the layout exhibited in the EES, during the 
concept design process we have been exploring ways in which to optimise the layout. We would welcome the 
Department’s views. 
 
Set out below is a brief summary of differences between the attached designs against the designs exhibited in the 
EES below. 

 
 FERNBANK – GLENALADALE ROAD NORTH (FGR-North) 

EES - Proposed to be permanently diverted to the north of the Stage 1 mining area with a new intersection 
on the Bairnsdale Dargo Road, north of the Fingerboards intersection 
Proposed Design – FGR-North to be temporarily diverted to the south, with a new intersection on the 
Bairnsdale Dargo Road, east of the Fingerboards intersection. Road returns to current alignment after 3 
years 
Reasons for changes –  

o Topography of the land to the north is undulating with several drainage creek crossings.  
o Reduced speed limit to 70kph likely for intersection SISD.  
o Landowner resistance to the permanent relocation of the road (Stephenson land).  
o Topography for the southern diversion is flat with good intersection sight distance on BDR 

intersection. 
o Temporary relocation return FGR-North to its current alignment after year 3-4 and resolves land 

tenure concerns. 
 

 BAIRNSDALE DARGO ROAD – NORTH (BDR-North) 
EES – Proposed to be permanently diverted to the east of current alignment in three stages. Connects with 
BDR-East and FGR-South with a new permanent roundabout to the south of the current Fingerboards 
intersection. 
Proposed Design – BDR-North is temporarily moved to the east for a period of ~18 months, during which 
the existing alignment is mined and then moved back to its current alignment north of the Fingerboards 
intersection. The section of road not returned to the current alignment, is moved permanently to the west 
of the current alignment with a new roundabout constructed to connect the FGR-South, BDR-East and BDR-
North. 
Reasons for changes –  

o Landowner resistance to the permanent relocation of the road (Stephenson land). 
o Removes a road relocation stage on the FGR-South in year 12. 
o Overall less relocation stages and FGR south alignment remains unchanged. 
o Permanent relocation of road to the west of current alignment is now located on land 100% owned 

by Kalbar. 
 

 BAIRNSDALE DARGO ROAD – East (BDR-East) 
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 EES – Proposed to be permanently diverted to the south of current alignment. Connects with BDR-North and 
FGR-South with a new permanent roundabout to the south of the current Fingerboards intersection. Road is 
temporarily moved off the current alignment for a period to enable mining, after which it is returned back to 
the current alignment.  

 Proposed Design – Generally identical to the EES proposal with only change being that the new roundabout 
has moved further to the West onto the current FGR-South alignment. 

 Reasons for changes –  
o Generally similar to the EES 
o Roundabout moved further west to avoid diversions to the FGR-South. 

 
 FERNBANK GLENALADALE ROAD– South (FGR-South) 
 EES – Road is diverted to the east to enable connection to the new roundabout with the BDR- East and 

North.  
 Proposed Design – Road is no longer diverted as the roundabout moved west to the current FGR-South 

alignment. 
 Reasons for changes –  

o Advantageous to undertake less disturbance to the existing road. 
 

 SUMMARY 
 All relocations in land currently owned by Kalbar or landholders that are open to a future transaction. 
 FGR-North no longer permanently diverted. 
 Less road upfront pre-operational road diversion stages. 
 All designs and intersections confirmed to be Austroads design guidelines compliant. 

 
Regards 
 
 
 
Stefan Wolmarans 
Principal 

 
t +61 (0)8 9204 0734  m +61 (0)488 070 534 

e swolmarans@waveinternational.com  

306 Murray Street, Perth, Western Australia 6000 

PO Box 7085, Cloisters Square, Western Australia 6850 

www.waveinternational.com  

 
Please consider the environment before printing this email. 
A person using “Wave International” correspondence, documentation, drawings and other data (the "Information") accepts the risk of: 
– using the "Information" in electronic form without requesting and checking them for accuracy against the original hard copy version 
– any corruption or virus infection which may be transmitted howsoever with the "information" 
– using the "Information" for any purpose not agreed to in writing by Wave International. 
The information contained in this communication correspondence is confidential, and is intended only for the use of the addressee. 
If you are not the intended recipient, any dissemination, copying or use of the information is strictly prohibited. 
If you have received this email in error, please immediately delete it and any copies of it from your system and notify Wave by return 
email to sender or telephone listed above. 
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Identifier Mitigation measure 

TE48 Currently known extant populations of gaping-leek orchid will be avoided, and project 

activities will be designed to minimise potential for indirect impacts to these populations. 

TE49 Construction machinery will not be permitted to access Cowells Lane to avoid potential 

indirect impacts to swamp everlasting, native vegetation and low-lying areas within the 

infrastructure options area. 

TE50 Progressive rehabilitation will aim to increase the extent of native vegetation cover and 

habitat connectivity within and adjoining the project area prior to clearing and fragmenting 

habitat in other areas. 

TE51 Faunal habitat features, such as logs and hollows, will be included as part of habitat 

restoration works. 

TE52 Populations of listed or rare native plant species from EVCs within the project area will be 

increased through targeted recovery programs. 

TE53 A detailed flora and fauna survey will be undertaken in accordance with relevant state and 

Commonwealth legislative requirements in the unsurveyed portion of the project area, 

located in the northwestern corner, prior to commencement of ground disturbance. 

TE54 Pre-clearance searches for fauna will be conducted by a competent environmental 

professional prior to vegetation removal. 

TE55 Construction activities will be delayed if significant weather events are forecast. 

TE56 Felling of large hollow-bearing trees will be supervised by a competent environmental 

professional. 

Traffic and transport  

TT01 The intersection of Princes Highway and Lindenow-Glenaladale Road will be upgraded to 

roundabout control to increase road safety and avoid excessive slowing of traffic due to B-

doubles turning right from Lindenow-Glenaladale Road onto Princes Highway (if required 

under the Bairnsdale rail and road and rail scenarios). 

TT02 A traffic management plan will be prepared in accordance with industry standards to 

address general driver awareness and safety for the project workforce and the inherent 

risks associated with driving; the plan will be updated as required based on annual driver 

surveys of the project workforce and in response to recommendations from relevant 

incident investigations. 

TT03 Standard road lighting will be provided at the following intersections to increase the 

visibility on approach to the intersection and improve safety:  

• Fernbank-Glenaladale Road and Bairnsdale-Dargo Road (if required under the road 

and rail scenario). 

• Lindenow-Glenaladale Road and Princes Highway. 

• Fernbank-Glenaladale Road and the private haulage road. 

• Racecourse Road and Princes Highway (if required under the Bairnsdale rail scenario). 

TT04 Flag lighting (a small number of lights to indicate the presence and location of an 

intersection without providing lighting to any particular level) will be provided at the 

following intersections to increase visibility on approach and improve safety: 

• Fernbank-Glenaladale Road and Princes Highway. 

• Fernbank-Glenaladale Road and private haulage road. 

TT05 Prior to the movement of oversize and overmass vehicles:  

• An audit will be completed to assess route options, safety, and clearance between the 

vehicle and potential obstructions such as wires, trees, structures and rail crossing 

infrastructure, and then plan the route accordingly. 
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Identifier Mitigation measure 

• A permit will be obtained from the relevant road authority to gain access to any roads 

not approved for oversize and overmass vehicles. 

TT06 Oversize and overmass vehicle movements will avoid peak hours and school bus 

operation hours. 

TT07 A channelised right-turn treatment will be provided at the new intersection of Bairnsdale-

Dargo Road and the diverted section of Fernbank-Glenaladale Road north of Bairnsdale-

Dargo Road. 

TT10 Diverted and realigned roads will be constructed to the same or better standard as existing 

roads. 

TT11 New intersections, including new intersections that have been created by diverted roads, 

will be constructed to Austroads standards. 

TT12 The no overtaking line marking west of the intersection of Lindenow-Glenaladale Road and 

Bairnsdale-Dargo Road will be extended to just west of Lindenow-Glenaladale Road to 

reduce the risk of vehicles trying to overtake B-doubles on the approach to the crest of the 

hill near the intersection. 

TT13 Boom gates will be installed at the level crossing on Lindenow-Glenaladale Road in 

accordance with AS 1742.7 Manual of uniform traffic control standards, Part 7 Railway 

crossings. 

TT14 Rumble or shaker strips will be provided on approach to the new Fingerboards roundabout 

and on the Fernbank East rail siding access road to prevent mud tracking onto the public 

road network. 

TT15 The proposed new Fingerboards roundabout will be designed so that the angle between 

each leg is approximately equal, such that the legs are distributed generally evenly around 

the roundabout. 

TT17 Where roadworks require closure of roads, alternative routes will be identified in 

consultation with East Gippsland Shire Council and Department of Transport to provide the 

public with adequate access at all times. 

TT18 New intersections will be constructed such that through-traffic movements are maintained 

to the satisfaction of the responsible road authority. Temporary traffic signals will be used 

as required to safely control traffic flow through the work site. 

TT19 Roadworks and temporary traffic management on the public road network will be 

implemented in accordance with a traffic management plan submitted to and approved by 

the responsible road authority prior to commencement of works. 

TT20 Emergency services will be advised where significant delays are expected and contact 

details for the operations manager will be provided to allow emergency services to arrange 

access across an area of delay. 

TT21 Roadworks affecting the Princes Highway, if required under the Bairnsdale rail scenario or 

road and rail scenario, will be avoided during peak periods, including peak hours and peak 

times such as school and public holidays, wherever practicable. 

TT22 The construction environmental management plan and environmental management plan 

will include measures to encourage personnel to travel to and from the mine site by bus, or 

to carpool. 

TT23 Based on the outcomes of pedestrian surveys at Lindenow South, B-double operating 

times will be limited (i.e., avoiding peak times), speed limits will be revised and driver 

training and familiarisation will be undertaken as required to minimise risks to pedestrian 

safety within the town. 
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Identifier Mitigation measure 

TT24 Measures developed in consultation with the Department of Transport will be implemented 

to minimise the risk of B-doubles queuing onto the level crossing at Maryvale rail siding, 

such as shorter cycle times, leading and lagging right turn phasing and coordinating 

signals with a detector on the rail line upstream of the crossing (if required under the road 

and rail scenario). 

TT25 Heavy mineral concentrate haulage via Lindenow South will be scheduled to avoid school 

bus routes during times of school bus movements (i.e., 7:30 a.m. to 9:00 a.m. and 3:20 

p.m. to 5:00 p.m. on school days). 

TT26 Where any pavement damage occurs and requires immediate treatment, remedial 

pavement works will be undertaken as agreed with the responsible road authority. 

TT28 For B-double movements to Fernbank East rail siding, an operational overlay to the traffic 

management plan will be introduced that requires B-doubles to stop before crossing 

Chettles Road and Cowells Lane. 

TT29 For B-double movements to Bairnsdale rail siding, shoulders will be widened, and line 

marking will be reinstated on the Racecourse Road bend to reduce the potential for rear 

end collisions (if required under the Bairnsdale rail scenario). 

TT30 For B-double movements to Bairnsdale rail siding, shoulders will be widened, and line 

marking will be reinstated on the Forge Creek Road bend to reduce the potential for 

crashes (if required under the Bairnsdale rail scenario). 

TT31 For B-double movements to Bairnsdale rail siding, the intersection of Princes Highway and 

Racecourse Road will be upgraded to roundabout control to increase road safety and 

avoid excessive slowing of traffic due to B-doubles turning right from Princes Highway onto 

Racecourse Road (if required under the Bairnsdale rail scenario). 

Visual and landscape 

VL01 Visual bunds and screen plantings will be established at locations around the perimeter of 

the project area to visually screen project activities from sensitive viewpoints. 

VL02 Fixed lighting on plant and buildings will be designed to reduce the potential for light spill 

through measures such as focussed/targeted lighting and installation of shields or baffles. 

VL03 Buildings and roofs will be clad with non-reflective materials of a colour that mimics those 

found in the landscape to reduce visual contrast with the landscape setting. 

VL04 Works will be scheduled wherever practicable during daylight hours to avoid night-time 

activities in areas directly visible from nearby residences. 

VL05 The mine void will be progressively backfilled, and rehabilitation will be progressive to re-

instate pre-mining landforms and re-establish vegetation. 

VL06 Fixed buildings will be located to take advantage of existing vegetation screening. 

Additional vegetation screening will be planned to minimise future visual impacts. 

VL07 The landscape will be restored to reduce visual impacts from elevated viewpoints. 

VL08 Regular slopes and/or sharp transition angles will be rounded to provide a natural 

appearance to the final landform. 

VL09 Disturbed areas (e.g., road reserves) will be revegetated with local indigenous vegetation. 

VL10 Displaced plantation timber and vegetation will be replaced around properties in 

consultation with relevant landholders. 

VL11 Topsoil will be managed and maintained throughout rehabilitation activities to promote 

successful re-grassing and tree planting. 


